
WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26

c/o NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION  530 SOUTH KING STREET ROOM 406  HONOLULU, HAWAII, 96813
PHONE (808) 768-3710  FAX (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: http://www.honolulu.gov/nco

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
WHITMORE COMMUNITY PARK – MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Jeanne Ishikawa called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with a quorum of six (6)
members present. Note – This nine (9) member Board requires five (5) members to establish a quorum and to
take official Board action.

Board Members Present: Alésia Au, Tom Bauer, Joseph Francher, Dean Harvest (arrived at 7:08 p.m. and
departed at 7:16 p.m.), Jeanne Ishikawa, Lei Learmont, Robert Lormand, and Silvia Manley-Koch (arrived at 7:04
p.m.).

Board Members Absent: Linda Marie Nunes.

Vacancies: None.

Guests: Captain Timothy Rapoza (Honolulu Fire Department); Acting Lieutenant Dennis Ono (Honolulu Police
Department); Lori Kunioka (Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s representative); First Deputy Attorney General Russell Suzuki
(Governor David Ige’s representative); Heidi Tsuneyoshi (Council Chair Ernie Martin’s Office); David Cho
(Senator Donovan Dela Cruz’s Office); Representative Marcus Oshiro; Captain Ramee Opperude (US Army);
Kuuipo Laumatia, Steve Davidson, Martha Evans, Jarom Laumatia, Dr. Verlieana Wright, Dr. Francine Palama,
Krystal Fenton, Blaine Fergerstrom, and Manuele Laumatia (Kamalani Academy); Daniel Hallman (Wahiawa
Pineapple Run); Lee and Hector (Taqueria El Ranchero); Joseph Acosta and Phil Acosta (ALEA Bridge); Stanley
Perpignan (Hope, Inc.); Malia Ikeda (Wahiawa Community Business Development); Nestor Muyot (Whitmore
Community Association); Doug Aton (Wahiawa Community Business Association); Videographer (DVDmodo);
and Stephen Saito (Neighborhood Commission Office).

FIRST RESPONDER MONTHLY REPORTS

Honolulu Fire Department (HFD) — Captain Timothy Rapoza reported the following:
 January 2016 Fire Statistics: There were 0 structure fires, 0 wildland/brush fires, 1 nuisance fire, 0

cooking fires, and 9 activated alarms. There were 62 medical emergencies, 1 motor vehicle collision with
pedestrian, 11 motor vehicle crash/collisions, 0 mountain rescues, 0 ocean rescues, and 1 hazardous
materials incident.

 Hiking Safety Tip: HFD often responds to hikers who are lost or injured. The Department of Land and
Natural Resources (DLNR), Division of Forestry and Wildlife, list the following safety tips:

o Inform others about the plan to hike and to notify others with the name and location of the trail
and the expected time to return from the hike. This information will give rescuers accurate
information on where to start the search.

o Plan the hike to include sufficient daylight.
o Take a fully charged cell phone when going on a hike as HFD relies on phone contact when

trying to locate a lost hiker or obtain any information regarding an injured hiker. If capable, HFD
will use the phone’s global positioning system (GPS) to obtain a general location.

o When hiking, stay on the trail. Most accidents happen when hikers leave the established trail and
disregard warning signs. Staying on the trail greatly reduces the chances of having a serious fall
or getting lost. For more information, visit www.dlnr.hawaii.gov/recreation.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. North Shore: Francher asked if the Wahiawa Fire Station is involved in HFD activities occurring at the

North Shore. Captain Rapoza answered in the affirmative.
2. Hazardous Material Incident: A community member asked what the hazardous material incident was.

Captain Rapoza noted that he did not have that information.

At 7:04 p.m., Koch arrived at the meeting; seven (7) members were present.



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 8

Honolulu Police Department (HPD) — Acting Lieutenant Dennis Ono reported the following:
 Total Calls for Service: There was a total of 4,082 calls for service.
 More Information: For more information about HPD, visit www.HPD.org or contact Sergeant Eli Walters

for Community Policing Information at 723-8708.
 Safety Tip: Before leaving the residences, remember to lock the windows even if the residence will be

vacant for a short time.
 Neighborhood Security Watch: The Wahiawa Community Policing Team is looking for volunteers

interested in starting or joining an existing Neighborhood Security Watch. For more information, contact

723-8710.

 Traffic Safety Tip: With the elderly population growing, observe how elderly parents drive and consider if it

is still safe for them to drive.

 Homeless near Freeway: Regarding the question about a homeless individual’s activity of panhandling

near the off-ramp of Kamehameha Highway, the individual’s personal property was seized as evidence.

 Homeless Individual at Wahiawa Shopping Center: Regarding the question about the homeless individual

at the Wahiawa Shopping Center, the individual was cited for drinking alcohol and was arrested on the

account of three (3) active warrants.

At 7:08 p.m., Harvest arrived to the meeting; eight (8) members were present.

Questions, comments and concerns followed:
1. Homeless: Learmont asked if there has been any concerning incidences relating to the homeless. Acting

Lieutenant Ono answered in the negative.
2. Karsten Thot Bridge: Resident Nestor Muyot commented about homeless individuals who cross the street

unsafely near Karsten Thot Bridge and asked if HPD could do anything about the issue. Acting Lieutenant
Ono answered that the homeless individuals may be residing on private property near Karsten Thot
Bridge and therefore HPD does not have the authority to evict those individuals. Acting Lieutenant Ono
added that motorists are normally at fault for hitting pedestrians in pedestrian incidences.

3. ALEA Bridge: Executive Director Joe Acosta from ALEA Bridge noted that he is a liaison with HPD
regarding homeless advocacy. Executive Director Acosta noted that HPD will go through procedures to
observe who is at fault regarding pedestrian incidences near Karsten Thot Bridge. Acting Lieutenant Ono
suggested and will relay the advice that the contractors for Karsten Thot Bridge construction project could
install more lighting fixtures around Karsten Thot Bridge.

4. Wahiawa Public Library: Chair Ishikawa read an email from the management of the Wahiawa Public
Library, stating the problems they are encountering with the homeless population fronting the entrance to
the library, on the California Avenue side near the bus stop. The library is requesting the bus stop be
removed due to problems with individuals sitting or lying in front of the doorway, blocking the
entranceway, leaving trash including alcoholic bottles, incidences of defecation, etc. The email also cited
the noise from TheBus and TheBus stop announcements are heard through the windows located near the
bus stop. The library cited that the Wahiawa Transit Center a half-block down the street so the bus stop
fronting the library is unnecessary.. Acting Lieutenant Ono noted that HPD will monitor the situation.
Executive Director Acosta noted that he speaks with the individuals near Wahiawa Public Library
whenever possible.

At 7:16 p.m., Harvest departed from the meeting; seven (7) members were present.

MONTHLY REPORTS

Board of Water Supply (BWS) — No representative was present; however, a BWS report was provided which
Francher read:

 January 2016 Main Breaks: There were no main breaks for January 2016.
 Free Seed of the Month Program: BWS and the Friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden will offer visitors

free xeric dry seed or seedling of the month at the Halawa Xeriscape Garden. The garden can be visited
on Wednesdays and Saturdays between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. to receive a complimentary
seed packet and an information sheet about the plant’s origin, care, and interesting facts. For February
2016, visitors will received bird of paradise/crane follower seeds. Visitors will receive one (1) packet per
household while supplies last. The garden is located at 99-1268 Iwaena Street.



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 8

 Halawa Xeriscape Garden Workshops: BWS and Friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden continue to offer
Saturday workshops that highlight the concept of xeriscaping. These workshops offer creative ideas to
help maintain a water efficient and attractive landscape while reducing the outdoor water use and reliance
on harmful chemical pesticides. A full listing of xeriscape workshops is available at
www.boardofwatersupply.com. Upcoming workshops include: Economical Aquaponics and Xeric Critters
craft on Saturday, February 13, 2016; Benefits of Companion Gardening on Saturday, February 27, 2016;
and Xeriscape 101 and Bokashi Composting on Saturday, March 5, 2016.

United States (US) Army — Captain Ramee Opperude reported the following:
 Lightning Forge: The 25th US Army Infantry Division thanks the local community for support and patience

while the Division executed Lightning Forge. The exercise was a success.
 Proposed Power Plant on Schofield: The US Army has completed its environmental review of the

Schofield Generating Station Project and announced its decision to proceed. The joint project between
the US Army and Hawaiian Electric Company (HECO) involves the US Army leasing land to HECO, for
HECO to construct, own, operate, and maintain the plant. The plant will provide power to all of HECO’s
Oahu customers. For more information, visit, www.garrison.hawaii.army.mil/schofieldplant.

United States (US) Navy — No representative was present; no report was provided.

PRESENTATIONS

Wahiawa Pineapple Run Update — Dan Hallman reported the following:
 Wahiawa Pineapple Run Description: The 41st annual Wahiawa Pineapple Run will be held on Saturday,

May 14, 2016 starting at 6:00 a.m. The route will be 10 Kilometers (K) or 6.2 miles long. The run will start
and end at Kaala Elementary School. Parking will be available at the empty lot in Whitmore. Cost for
registration of the run will be $45 and will increase to $60 on Saturday, May 14, 2016.

 Wahiawa Pineapple Run Progress: Permits and insurance applications have been processed and
approved. Organizers of the run are anticipating about 800 to 1,000 runners to participate in the run.
20,000 flyers about the event have been posted throughout the community.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Maximum Participant Capacity: Chair Ishikawa asked for the maximum participant capacity the event

could hold. Hallman answered that up to 2,500 runners could participate at the run.
2. Wahiawa Pineapple Festival: Lormand noted that in 2017, the Wahiawa Pineapple Festival would be held

in conjunction with the Wahiawa Pineapple Run. Chair Ishikawa commented that many,many years ago,
the Wahiawa Pineapple Festival used to be a weeklong event.

Group Living Facility at 360 California Avenue — Stanley Perpignan from Hope, Inc. presented the following:
Group Living Facility Proposal: Hope, Inc. is proposing the operation of a 22 bed facility at 360 California Avenue
for treatment of adult individuals suffering from diseases of addiction or mental health.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. About Hope, Inc.: Chair Ishikawa asked for more information about Hope, Inc. Perpignan answered that

Hope, Inc. is a local homeless service provider that provides services such as outreach, day treatment,
rehabilitation, and medical management. The group living facility at 360 California Avenue will be the first
inpatient facility in Hawaii.

2. Patients: Learmont asked how the facility gathers patients. Perpignan answered that patients are sourced
from various sources that asks for Hope, Inc.’s services. Bauer asked if patients will be housed
permanently. Perpignan answered that the facility will be used for treatment and will be a 90 days step
down program where patients will be treated for at the maximum of four (4) months.

3. Funds: Bauer asked how Hope, Inc. is funded. Perpignan answered that Hope, Inc. is both a non-profit
and for profit entity. 90% of the funds are sourced from the insurance from clients.

4. Facility: Koch asked and Perpignan answered that the 360 California Avenue property was designed to
be a treatment facility for 22 inpatients with 24 hours a day staffing. Perpignan added that patients cannot
leave the program at-will.

5. Website: Koch asked and Perpignan answered that Hope, Inc.’s website is www.hopehi.com.
6. Project Timeline: Francher asked and Perpignan answered that the facility’s open house will be held on

Friday, April 22, 2016 and will start accepting patients shortly after.



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 8

7. Staffing Qualifications: Au asked and Perpignan answered that the qualifications for staff of the facility will
vary by their degrees and experiences. Perpignan added that the floor staff will have at least an
associate’s degree.

8. Medical Staffing: Chair Ishikawa asked and Perpignan answered that there will be two (2) nurses staffed
at the facility at all times and doctors will be on a rotation schedule. Chair Ishikawa asked if Wahiawa
General Hospital will be partnering with Hope, Inc. with the facility work. Perpignan answered that Hope,
Inc. is expecting to be able to work with the entire community.

9. Individuals without Insurance: Learmont asked what would happen to individuals who require treatment,
but do not have the insurance. Perpignan answered that individuals without insurance will not be rejected
from the facility. Hope, Inc. will work with those individuals so that the proper insurance resources can be
obtained.

10. Funding Continued: Chair Ishikawa asked and Perpignan answered that Hope, Inc. is both nonprofit and
for profit and some agencies in the umbrella of the organization are for profit. Perpignan answered that
there are three (3) nonprofit entities within Hope, Inc. in Hawaii and the facility in Wahiawa will be
nonprofit.

11. Cultural Programs: Dr. Palama asked and Perpignan answered that the facility will provide a holistic
training approach for patients and will apply a Hawaiian based recovery program. Perpignan added that
more information about the treatment program will be available at the open house.

Kamalani Academy — Kuuipo Laumatia, Principal Martha Evans, and Steve Davidson circulated a packet and
presented the following:

 Kamalani Academy Fundamentals: Kamalani Academy will be a public charter school that will operate
under a charter with the State Charter Commission. Tuition will be free and will be governed by an
independent body. Kamalani Academy is serviced by an Educational Management Organization (EMO)
and is partnered with Academica Nevada.

 Arts Integration Focus: Kamalani Academy will focus on the diversity cultures and will be an arts
integrated public charter school. The curriculum is modeled after Pomaika’i Elementary School. Students
will be able to construct and demonstrate an understanding through art form and engage in a creative
process.

Question, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Kindergarten to Eighth (8th) Grade: Francher asked and Laumatia answered that Kamalani Academy will

be servicing from Kindergarten to Eighth (8th) Grade, but plans to extend teaching to up to the twelfth
(12th) Grade.

2. Start of Service: Koch asked and Laumatia answered that Kamalani Academy is expected to start
teaching classes in August 2017.

3. Disabilities Students: Koch asked if there will be accessibility of services for disabled students. Laumatia
answered that Kamalani Academy will meet the requirements to 504 Plan regarding disabled students.

4. School Funding: Koch asked and Laumatia answered that a fee is provided to Academica Nevada and
the income the school receives is from the allocation per student. Laumatia answered that an audit is
done annually and the school will be open for enrollment for military family children.

5. Disclosure: Au noted that she assisted with Kamalani Academy by referring them the organizations to talk
to for their Conditional Use Permit (CUP).

6. Lease: Francher asked and Laumatia answered that Kamalani Academy will be leasing the property from
the Our Lady of Sorrows church and the issue was discussed in the past.

7. Influence: Chair Ishikawa asked Laumatia what influenced her into organizing the efforts to bring a public
charter school to Wahiawa. Laumatia answered that she lived in Wahiawa and commented about the
challenges in finding an academia that would accommodate the needs for her children. Steve Davidson
added that a public charter school allows parents who cannot afford to send their children to a private
school a chance for their children to receive a similar educational experience.

8. Students: Francher asked and Laumatia answered that in 2017, Kamalani Elementary School is looking
to approve 250 students for the school year and looking at students from Kindergarten to Sixth (6th)
Grade.

9. Curriculum: A community member asked if there is a website with details of the school’s curriculum.
Laumatia answered that the school’s curriculum would be listed on the Hawaii Charter Commission’s
website.

RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS AND COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS:



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 8

62nd Annual Kunia Orchid Show: Chair Ishikawa announced that the 62nd Annual Kunia Orchid Show will be held
at Leilehua High School from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Friday, March 18, 2016; 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on
Saturday, March 19, 2016; and 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Sunday, March 20, 2016.

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative — Lori Kunioka reported the following:
 Group Living Facility: The Land Use Ordinance (LUO), does not prohibit a group living facility from

sharing its access drive with other houses or zoning lots. The request is reviewed by the Department of
Planning and Permitting (DPP) as part of its evaluation of a CUP to allow a group living facility. The
evaluation includes the adequacy of its access and other supporting infrastructure. If the address of the
drive is adequate, then this may not be an adverse issue, but will need to be reviewed by the specific
circumstances associated with the request, site, and the surrounding neighborhood. There is no record of
a CUP having been issued to allow a group living facility at 1770 California Avenue; but there is an
existing use permit which authorizes five (5) single-family dwellings on the zoning lot. An adult residential
care home licensed by the State may operate with up to eight (8) residents, in addition to a resident
manage, as a single-family dwelling use.

 Wahiawa District Park Handicap Parking Sign: A sign request has been submitted to replace the
vandalized and faded handicap parking sign at Wahiawa District Park.

 Wahiawa District Park Ceiling Fans: The replacement ceiling fans for the Wahiawa District Park have
been ordered and are awaiting shipment and installation.

 Unpaved Road Portion of Iliwai Drive: The City re-inspected Iliwai Drive and documented the additional
depressions. The City will monitor the depressions and determine a plan of action as required.

 Carport at 1515 Royal Palm Drive: Inspection of the carport at 1515 Royal Palm Drive revealed that the
carport is occupied and a notice of violation has been issued.

 Sinkhole at Loko Drive: A work order was sent to the Department of Facility Maintenance (DFM) for the
repair of the sink hole on Loko Drive.

 Bus Shelter in Front of Wahiawa Shopping Center: The bus shelter in front of Wahiawa Shopping Center
will be removed by June 2016.

 Parking Meters on Center Street: The Department of Transportation Services (DTS) does not have plans
to install parking meters on Center Street.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Traffic Calming Request for Dole Street: Francher requested for traffic calming measures on Dole Street.
2. Bus Stop near Wahiawa Public Library: Chair Ishikawa asked for DTS to consider the removal of the bus

stop near the Wahiawa Public Library and raised the concern of the amount of trash in the area.
3. No Parking on Uuku Street: Chair Ishikawa said she’s received complaints requesting more enforcement

of the “No Parking“ signs at Uuku Street. Walkers complain they have to walk in the street. The
requestors are also asking for more “No Parking” signs on Uuku, starting from the intersection of Glen
Avenue up to California Avenue.

4. Crosswalk Request: Resident Nestor Muyot requested a crosswalk near the bus stop at Kulia Street.
Ishikawa commented about the request being denied by DTS in the past.

Council Chair Ernie Martin — Heidi Tsuneyoshi circulated a newsletter and reported the following:
 Pine Street: Pine Street is a privately owned street.
 City’s Budget: The City’s Budget will be up for first hearing in March 2016.
 ALEA Bridge: Council Chair Martin’s Office supports ALEA Bridge and their service to the community.
 Wahiawa Community and Business Association (WCBA) Annual Installation Dinner: Council Chair Martin

emceed and attended the WCBA annual installation dinner that was held at Dot’s on Thursday, January
21, 2016.

 28th Annual Nikkei Civic Association Sakura Matsuri: Council Chair Martin attended the Wahiawa Nikkei
Civic Association 28th Annual Sakura Matsuri.

 Cherry Blossoms Planted at Helemano Plantation: Council Chair Martin met with representatives from the
Hawaii Cherry Alley Committee during the planting of cherry blossoms at Halemano Plantation. Susanna
Cheung founded Helemano Plantation.

 Wahiawa Center for Community Health Check Award from Hawaii Pacific Health System: Council Chair
Martin supports and congratulates Wahiawa Center for Community Health for their check award from
Hawaii Pacific Health System at the Wahiawa Medical Building. Wahiawa Center for Community Health



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 8

began by the late US Senator Daniel Inouye, with a planning grant application which was awarded to
Wahiawa and completed in August 2012.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Pine Street: Au asked if Pine Street will remain a private road. Tsuneyoshi noted that the construction

occurring at Pine Street is under allowable use and to voice any concerns about the use of the road to
DPP.

2. Island Power Project: Au commented about the Island Power project being three (3) stories tall and being
built behind the Pine Street. Tsuneyoshi answered that a precise location of the project needs to be
identified for the review of the permit. Representative Marcus Oshiro asked if the project is referring to the
micro units development. Tsuneyoshi answered in the affirmative. Representative Oshiro raised a
concern about traffic congestion.

3. Vehicle Collisions at Walker Avenue: Au raised a concern about the frequency of motor vehicle collisions
occurring at Walker Avenue.

4. Two (2) Holes on Waena Street: Au commented about there being two (2) holes on Waena Street by the
park side of the road.

Governor David Ige’s Representative — First Deputy Attorney General Russell Suzuki circulated a handout and
reported the following:

 Super Ferry: Governor Ige supports the idea of a Super Ferry and recommends that a Draft
Environmental Assessment (DEA) and proper protocols be observed if reviewed again.

 Preschool Open Doors (POD) Program: The last day to sign up for the Preschool Open Doors program
with PATCH is on Thursday, March 31, 2016. For more information, visit www.patchhawaii.org.

 Hawaii State Hospital Ground Breaking Ceremony: The Hawaii State Hospital held its ground breaking
ceremony on Saturday, February 27, 2016. Construction for a new hospital is on its way. $150 million in
lump sum is budgeted for the design and decommission of the hospital.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. State Office in Wahiawa: Francher asked for more information about a State Office being constructed in

Wahiawa. First Deputy Attorney Suzuki answered that the building that Francher is referring to would be
under the Hawaii State Judiciary and would need to be referred to them.

2. Homelessness: Learmont commented about the State’s budget and asked if funding for the homeless
problem will be allocated for Central Oahu.

Representative Marcus Oshiro — Representative Oshiro reported the following:
Representative Oshiro stated he did not have a report but is open to questions. He said he would follow up on
the concerns no left turns entering Tamura’s Market.

He also announced his next Town Hall Meeting: The next Town Hall meeting will be at the Wahiawa District Park
Hale Koa Room from 6:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. on Tuesday, March 29, 2016.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Medical Marijuana Dispensers: Bauer requested more information about medical marijuana dispensaries.

Representative Oshiro noted that on Friday, April 15, 2016, eight (8) medical marijuana dispensaries in
the State will be announced. Representative Oshiro noted his concerns about the process of applying to
become a medical marijuana dispensary and noted his opposition towards a bill that allows nurses to
issue certificates for individuals who are approved to take medical marijuana. Representative Oshiro
added that for a vendor to dispense medical marijuana, the vendor has 60 days to disclose their intent to
the Department of Health before retail sales or 30 days before the vendor starts to grow medical
marijuana. Learmont noted her opposition to medical marijuana development in Wahiawa.

2. Medical Marijuana Vendor: Au asked and Representative Oshiro answered that some landowners may
have an idea who leased land to medical marijuana vendors, but commented about there being possible
strict confidentiality agreements.

3. Hawaii State Hospital: Chair Ishikawa commented about a bill in the City’s budget to fund the State
hospital. Hawaii State Hospital: Representative Oshiro commented that the State Hospital was failed to
be funded and violated the rights of those who were incarcerated to be cared for by the State.

4. Weed and Seed Program: Tsuneyoshi asked and Representative Oshiro answered that medical
marijuana dispensaries may conflict with the Weed and Seed program policy in the future.



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 8

5. Increase in the General Excise Tax (GET): A community member asked for more information about
upcoming proposals for the increase in GET. Representative Oshiro noted that there are several bills
relating to the GET including increases for Hawaii State Teachers Association (HSTA), long term care,
fuel tax for repairs to the highway. Representative Oshiro added that the State is working on improving
the State procurement system to improve how federal funds are spent.

6. Smoke-Free Apartments: Lormand asked what would happen to smoke-free apartments if an individual is
prescribed medical marijuana. Representative Oshiro noted that restricting the smoking of medical
marijuana may conflict with American with Disabilities Act (ADA) policies.

Senator Donovan Dela Cruz — David Cho reported the following:
 Hawaii 3-to-6 Program: Senate Bill (SB) 3099 relating to the establishment of the Hawaii 3-to-6 program

that appropriatesfunds for an after school program for students grade K-12. SB3099 was passed out of
the Senate Committee of Education is to be heard in the Senate Committee on Ways and Means.
Funding for program is as followed:

o Phase 1: $9,000,000 will be allocated for fiscal year 2016 to 2017 for middle schools.
o Phase 2: $11,000,000 will be allocated for fiscal year 2017 to 2018 for high schools.
o Phase 3: $1,000,000 will be allocated for fiscal year 2018 to 2019 for elementary schools.

 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects: Kaala Elementary School was awarded $377,000 for repairs
and maintenance.

 Karsten Thot Bridge Hotline: For the Karsten Thot Bridge Hotline, contact 518-5176.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Hawaii 3-to-6 Program: Chair Ishikawa asked and Cho answered that the “3-to-6” signifies the time

students are out of school.
2. Funds: Francher asked and Cho answered that the Department of Education (DOE) would be in control of

the funds for the Hawaii 3-to-6 program.

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS — There was no report at the time.

BOARD BUSINESS

Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of Monday, January 25, 2016: Francher moved and Koch seconded to
adopt the regular meeting minutes of Monday, January 25, 2016. The motion was ADOPTED
UNANIMOUSLY, 7-0-0 (Aye: Au, Bauer, Francher, Ishikawa, Learmont, Lormand, and Manley-Koch; Nay: none;
Abstain: none).

Treasurer’s Report: Treasurer Bauer reported a remaining balance of $180.26. The report was filed.

Chair’s Report: Chair Ishikawa noted that the Neighborhood Commission Office (NCO) Conference of Chairs will
be held on Saturday, April 9, 2016.

Call for Disclosure by Board Members who have Attended Meetings: Learmont and Au attended the cherry
blossom planting at Helemano Plantation. Learmont noted that she attended the Wahiawa Health Center check
presentation ceremony.

Proposed Development at 360 California Avenue: Learmont moved and Bauer seconded to support the the
proposal to establish a group living facility at 360 California Avenue to provide special treatment housing
for adult individuals suffering from the diseases of addiction or mental health in the A-2 Medium Density
Apartment District. The motion was ADOPTED UNANIMOUSLY, 7-0-0 (Aye: Au, Bauer, Francher, Ishikawa,
Learmont, Lormand, and Manley-Koch; Nay: none; Abstain: none).

Kamalani Academy: Au moved and Lormand seconded to support the proposal to develop Kamalani
Academy, a charter school based on the Creative Arts, on the property of the Former Our Lady of
Sorrows School Located at 1403-A California Avenue.

Discussion Followed: Motion: Francher asked if the motion is to support the concept of the plan or to support the
proposal of the development of the school at the location. Chair Ishikawa noted that the motion implies both the
location and concept of the school.



WAHIAWA-WHITMORE VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 26 MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 8 OF 8

The motion was ADOPTED UNANIMOUSLY, 7-0-0 (Aye: Au, Bauer, Francher, Ishikawa, Learmont, Lormand,
and Manley-Koch; Nay: none; Abstain: none).

Moped Resolution: Learmont moved and Au seconded to adopt the resolution requesting the Honolulu City
Council and the Hawaii State Legislature to enact laws that reduce excessive moped noise.

Discussion followed:
1. Excessive Moped Noise Ban: Learmont noted that there should be a ban on excessive moped noise.
2. Enforcement: Chair Ishikawa raised a concern about how the resolution will become enforceable.
3. Resident Complaints: Au commented about residents’ with health issues various complaints about

excessive moped noise.

The motion was NOT ADOPTED, 3-3-1 (Aye: Learmont, Lormand, and Manley-Koch; Nay: Bauer, Francher,
and Ishikawa; Abstain: Au).

Committee Reports
 Education: Koch noted that Spring Break will be from Wednesday, March 16 to Thursday, March 24,

2016. Leilehua Project Graduation will be on Saturday, March 5, 2016. There will be a plantation
fundraiser on Saturday, March 12, 2016.

 Military: There was no report at the time.
 Transportation: Francher noted that the next Oahu Metropolitan Planning Organization (OMPO) will be on

Wednesday, February 24, 2016.
 Water: There was no report at this time. Lormand requested for more information regarding the Ku Tree

Reservoir.
 Hawaiian Affairs: There was no report at the time.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
 Next Meeting: The next Wahiawa-Whitmore Village Neighborhood Board No. 26 regular meeting will be

on Monday, March 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the Wahiawa Recreation Center’s Hale Koa Building.
 “Sew a Lei for Memorial Day” Poster Contest 2016: The “Sew a Lei for Memorial Day” poster contest has

begun and is open to all students, kindergarten through high school. Posters should depict the Hawaii
tradition of placing a flower lei on each gravesite at the National Memorial Cemetery of the Pacific on
Memorial Day, in honor of our servicemen and women. Deadline to submit artwork is Friday, March 4,
2016 to the DPR, Kapolei Hale, 1001 Uluohiwa Street, Kapolei, Hawaii 96707. Call 768-3003 for more
information.

 88th Annual Lei Court Selection Event: The 88th Annual Lei Court Selection Event will be on Saturday,
March 5, 2016, from 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. at McCoy Pavilion, Ala Moana Regional Park. This event is
free and open to the public. Contestants will display their Kumuhana o ka Lei (skills of lei making),
Kulana Lei (poise and personality), ‘Olelo Pelekane and ‘Olelo Hawai’i (speaking skills in both English
and the Hawaiian language), and Hula ‘Auana (modern hula). Once selected, the Lei Court presides over
the Lei Day festivities and are the City’s Ambassadors of Aloha at various public events.

 Last Friday at Dot’s Restaurant: Last Friday at Dot’s Restaurant will be held on Friday, February 26, 2016
and will host live band entertainment on the last Fridays of the month from 6:30 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. Three
(3) live bands will be featured. Call 622-4115 for more information.

 AARP Provides Free In-Person Tax Preparation Service: There will be Free in-person tax preparation
services, provided by AARP, from Wednesday, February 3, 2016 to Wednesday, April 13, 2016 at the
Wahiawa Public Library; Wednesdays, 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. and Fridays, 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.

 Movie Night at the Wahiawa Public Library: “Kid-Friendly Movies” are shown every Tuesday night at 5:00
p.m. and on Saturdays at 2:00 p.m. at the Wahiawa Public Library. Teen movies and family movies are
also shown. Contact the library at 622-6345.

 The People’s Open Market: The People’s Open Market at Wahiawa District Park is held on every
Tuesday from 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 9:38 p.m.

Submitted by: Stephen Saito, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed by: Relley Araceley, Neighborhood Assistant
Finalized and Reviewed by: Jeanne Ishikawa, Chair


